
Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Special Meeting 
Session- CMS Budget Request in the Valerie C. Woodard Conference Center, 3205 Freedom Drive, 
Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on Thursday, May, 11, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier,   
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  Vice Chair Elaine Powell  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  
23-0315 CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG SCHOOLS FY2024 BUDGET REQUEST 
   
The Board received a request for FY2024 County funding from Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools 
(CMS).  
  
 Elyse Dashew, Chair of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education, introduced the FY2024 
budget request. The presentation began with Dr. Crystal Hill with background on the schools.  
  



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

2 

 

Background: The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education has adopted a proposed operating 
budget for FY2023-2024 that includes a request to the Board of County Commissioners for 
County funding. Representatives from CMS will present the request for funding to the Board of 
County Commissioners for consideration as part of the FY2024 Budget. 
 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

3 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

4 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

5 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

6 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

7 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

8 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

9 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

10 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

11 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

12 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

13 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

14 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

15 

 

Beth Thompson continued the presentation with more background on the budget and 
initiatives which included the district annual planning process.  

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

16 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

17 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

18 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

19 

 

 
Sheila Shirley, CMS Chief Financial Officer continued the presentation with an overview of the 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

20 

 

CMS 2023-2024 proposed budget.   
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

21 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

22 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

23 

 

 
 
Executive Director of Federal Programs, Dr. Katy Sunseri, continued the presentation by giving 
an update on the Covid Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Funds (ESSER). 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

24 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

25 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

26 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

27 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

28 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

29 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

30 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

31 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

32 

 

 
 Ms. Thompson continued the presentation. 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

33 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

34 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

35 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

36 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

37 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

38 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

39 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

40 

 

 
 

The presentation continued with Dr. Crystal Hill presenting the proposed budget.   
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

41 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

42 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

43 

 

 
 

Stephanie Sneed concluded the presentation. 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

44 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

45 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

46 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

47 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

48 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

49 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

50 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

51 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

52 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

53 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

54 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

55 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

56 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

57 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

58 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

59 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

60 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

61 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

62 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

63 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

64 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

65 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

66 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

67 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

68 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

69 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

70 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

71 

 

Comments 
 
Chair Dunlap stated that salary adjustments were outlined, and another $28 million was 
invested in the employees, and he asked if the salary adjustments were part of that. Ms. Shirley 
said it was recategorized and that the total at the back included all the investments.  
 
Chair Dunlap asked about additional money for supplements. Dr. Hill said it was an additional 
amount, and they were unsure what the State would do for salary increases. She said there was 
a possibility that if the amount was higher, they would be reinvested to make the teacher 
supplements even higher. If it were lower, CMS would absorb it.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification on different supplements for 
different years of experience.  Ms. Shirley said there was a schedule for the different steps.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell stated that she thought it was a fantastic thing that extra 
would go to supplements for teachers.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if the net growth of students was expected to be 2,000 students 
and if that was the reason for the $8.1 million on page 76. Ms. Shirley said the total was the 
combination of the charter growth and the cost of opening new schools.  
 
Commissioner Griffin stated that he would love to put an apartment complex in each of the six 
districts for 100 new students to assist with teacher recruiting and retention. Dr. Hill said CMS 
was working with non-profits, corporate leaders, and government officials to provide housing to 
teachers. 
 
Commissioner Leake raised concern about nationally certified teachers and said she did not see 
that listed for salaries. Ms. Shirley said it was approximately 12% additional on each of the 
salary schedules.  
 
Commissioner Leake stated that the information should be in the budget. She asked about the 
growth of the school district for the next year. Ms. Shirley said there were approximately 200 
additional students projected for their enrollment growth for a total of 141,456.  
 
Commissioner Leake asked if they had been losing students for the past four years or five years. 
Ms. Shirley said student enrollment had been growing since 2021, post-pandemic.  
 
Commissioner Leake asked if there were only substitutes at Turning Point Academy. Dr. Hill said 
there was a principal at the school, and the exact numbers of teachers and vacancies would be 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

72 

 

sent to her.  
 
Commissioner Leake said Livingstone College had a special program for black males in 
education but no one from CMS had been to the college to recruit any of those students.    
 
Commissioner Meier asked if all salaries were budgeted for whether they were filled or not. Ms. 
Shirley said that all positions were budgeted for. She stated that specific redirects were made, 
which in the current year was approximately $13.7 million. This redirect includes items such as a 
technology refresh. She said if there were more positions filled, CMS would have to hold back on 
the items the money was redirected to.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked about slide 67 if the same graph could be provided for the top 10 
North Carolina counties for average teacher pay and beginning average teacher pay.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked where in the presentation did they drill down on the safety and 
security spending. She said she hoped there would be an outside entity that would consult with 
CMS and make recommendations for each school. Mr. Shultz said they received a $2.8M safety 
grant from the State and were implementing the go-bags that would be installed in all offices 
and classrooms over the summer. He said with the weapon detection system, there had been a 
significant decrease in weapons and firearms in schools. He said they have worked in 
partnership with the Bank of America security team to help create a facility that they were 
starting to implement in their lock-down drills and reviews that they do twice a year in every 
school.  He said they would be doing a safety assessment in each of the schools.  He said CMS 
exceeded what other districts have done regarding safety. He said strategies had to be in place 
for all potential threats, and there would be feedback from a professional team.  
 
Commissioner Cotham asked about the 52 Title I schools failing and if the budget was used to 
improve them. It was said that the actions and resources were the most important components 
for the schools and were ramped up for those schools.  The principal supervisors have instituted 
remediation plans to meet the State requirements.   
 
Commissioner Cotham said she thought it was unfair to have to make a budget being unaware 
of what the State was going to do. Commissioner Cotham asked about enrollment prior to 2018 
and what the cost of fewer students looked like. Commissioner Cotham asked how many times 
they had gone to Raleigh and with whom they met to discuss the state budget. Ms. Shirley said 
enrollment in 2018 was approximately 147,359. Predominantly, the funding was related to 
enrollment growth.  She said there were many items the County funded that were not directly 
related to enrollment.  
 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

73 

 

Chair Dunlap asked if there was any adjustment in the budget based on a 7,000-student drop.  
Ms. Shirley explained the state's funding and redirection of funds.   
 
Chair Dunlap asked about those teachers who left who were at the top tier in terms of receiving 
supplemental pay and how that pay is redirected. Ms. Shirley said they looked at an average 
when doing the budget. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked if mental health professionals were being hired. Ms. Shirley said 
that social workers, psychologists, and counselors had always been part of the budget, and 
more investments had been made during and since COVID-19. It was clarified that there was 
additional information on where the COVID funds went. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about the goal alignments of the two college and career-ready 
goals.  Ms. Sneed said those goals were in alignment with the district's goals.  
 
Commissioner Griffin commented that the four goals were insufficient in terms of student 
performance as they related to one of their outstanding goals.  He said one of the concerns was 
about college and career readiness. He asked if there was some sense of how students 
graduating had the skills necessary at the college and career-ready level.  Dr. Hill said the 
overall health of the district was examined, and it was expected for students graduating to have 
employable skills. She said the four goals were where they needed to focus the most but not 
forsaking any other areas.  She said the EVAAS growth captured every single tested content area 
in North Carolina.  
 
The discussion continued regarding college and career readiness. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked how many teachers had four-year contracts. Commissioner Griffin 
asked if the funding allocation was sufficient to meet the goals. Dr. Hill said yes, the funding 
was sufficient, and said their number one goal was making sure there was a very strong 
competent teacher in front of every student and that there were quality teachers. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell said teacher retention was very important, and he asked for additional 
information on teacher retention strategies, what teachers were being lost, what industry were 
teachers being lost to, how far teachers were in their tenure, and what internal mechanisms 
were being used to retain them. He asked if CMS was losing teachers more rapidly than others 
across the state or country. He asked if gaps were being closed with respect to disparities or 
were they still where they had been in the past. It was said that retention and recruitment 
strategies were tied directly together and many were unique to CMS, such as the teacher 
residency program. There was a strong student-teacher program with an incentive tied to it to 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

74 

 

entice student teachers who had gone through the program to come to CMS.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell said compensation was important but that other drivers were impacting 
turnover.  Dr. Hill said that the exit interview data was being collected to examine the reasons 
teachers were leaving. Dr Hill said focusing on leadership and ensuring that there were excellent 
principals were crucial.  She said growth was looked at by content area and grade level to 
examine where there was achievement in closing the gaps. Within the operational excellence 
pillar, one of the projects was the ability to conduct financial reviews across the entire budget 
for the upcoming school year. There would be implementation and outcome metrics across all 
projects.   
 
Commissioner Altman asked about disparities and stated that she would like a comparison from 
the current year to the previous year regarding students of color and white students. She asked 
about plans around workforce development and aligning with the providers for career and 
technical education. She asked if they had to resources to deliver MTSS services to all the 
students who needed it. She asked about summer programming to close the gaps. Dr. Hill said 
the information broken down by race would be provided to the full Board. Dr. Cotrane Penn, 
Executive Director of Student Wellness and Academic Support said intervention, or the three-
tiered model of instruction, was one of the six components of the MTSS framework. She said 
over the past two years, there was significant time spent to refine the systems and practice 
around intervention. The first step was based on which students were performing at levels that 
might hint that there was an issue, followed by a data dive to see if there were additional 
factors at play. 14,046 students had an active intervention plan at the time of presentation.  
 
Commissioner Leake raised concerns about enrollment and how many students received 
certificates and not diplomas. She asked who was delivering the programs to students. It was 
reported that student teachers from Charlotte-Mecklenburg got a signing bonus of $10,000, 
and student teachers from other schools also got a recruiting bonus of $7,500. Dr. Hill said she 
would contact the colleges mentioned by Commissioner Leake about recruitment from their 
teacher programs. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell commented that the Board had a big role to play in the 
culture and that investing in the students was the best thing that could be done.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there was a plan to keep the high school endorsement goal and, if 
so, can the goal be disaggregated by race. He asked about the bond for the Second Ward High 
School. Dr. Hill said the current goals were slated to continue and that the Board was in the 
process of compiling the data for review. After the data was reviewed, they would be engaging 
with the community to develop new goals. The new data would point out different areas of 



Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2023 
 

75 

 

focus.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there was anticipation to add a public chamber for school board 
meetings. Dennis LaCaria, Executive Director, Facilities, Planning & Real Estate, 
said there was space being looked at in the Second Ward High School that could be a multiple-
use space.  
 
Chair Dunlap asked why a regional sports facility was needed and if one was needed if 
Memorial Stadium could serve as the facility. Mr. LaCaria said a lot of high-school athletics will 
be displaced while doing the projects in the 2023 bond. He said they would need a neutral home 
site.  He said currently CMS was not able to host large tournaments, state championships, etc., 
and Memorial Stadium could serve for some of that. He said in the long term, land was 
becoming more difficult to acquire, so a framework needed to be built with that in mind.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Cotham, seconded by Commissioner Meier, and 
unanimously carried (8-0) to adjourn. 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chairman 
 
 


